Questions and Answers

Attachment 1 to Amendment 03

SIR DTFA01-00-R-00923

Public Announcement
Question #1 – The last paragraph of the Announcement states “There is no requirement to respond to this announcement.” This statement is unclear and introduces an amount of ambiguity as to whether this SIR is a draft or a final version. If this SIR is a final version, the response period is insufficient for small business to garner and apply the appropriate resources to provide a proper response to a complex SIR of this nature given the typical absences of key personal during the end of year holiday season. As such, an extension of an additional fifteen (15) days to January 25, 2000 for the proposal due date is requested.

Response #1 – The SIR released on December 11, 199 is the final version of the SIR. The date of receipt of proposals was initially extended from January 10 to January 24, 2000. Amendment 02 extended the proposal receipt date from January 24 to February 7, 2000. Currently, Amendment 03 extends the proposal receipt date from February 7 to February 16, 2000.

Question #2 – In the announcement, the FAA requests proof of SEDB status. Where within the proposal would the FAA like this included?

Response #2 – Please provide proof of SEDB status in Volume 1 – Offeror (Administrative Proposal) as a separate clearly labeled tab.

Section C

Question #1 - Part I, Clause C.3 states “The Government desires one full time individual for every personnel labor category outlined in the SIR.” However, Part IV, Section L.8.2.g indicates a number of labor categories that do not or will not require full time individual. Please clarify the statement in C.3.

Response #1 –  The FAA desires at least one individual for every personnel labor category. For those labor categories with hours that represent more than one labor year (1,880 hours), the FAA desires more than one individual. For those labor categories that represent less than one labor year, FAA desires one individual to perform the total number of hours stated for that category. 

Question #2 – Part I, Clause C.3.3 seems to be missing sub-clause C.3.3.3. Is this a typographical error or should there be a sub-clause C.3.3.3? Please clarify.

Response #2 – This is a typographical error. The sub-clause C.3.3.4 should read C.3.3.3.

Question #3 – Section C.4.1, the phase “However, the FAA may designate some of the contractor employees to be housed on site at the FAA headquarters in Washington, D.C. 

or William J. Hughes Technical Center in Atlantic City, NJ”, could wreak havoc with people, depending on the frequency or use. Please clarify.

Response #3 –  The FAA expects that the majority of the services required hereunder will be performed at the contractor office or at the FAA Headquarters in Washington DC. However, labor categories have been designated to be housed on-site at FAA locations in Atlantic City, NJ and Langley, VA. The FAA reserves the right to designate additional labor categories to be housed at other FAA locations at a later date, which will be specified in the appropriate task orders for those locations. Section L.8.2.g has been revised to identify labor categories that will be housed on-site at FAA facilities.

Question #4 – C.3 & H.9.(2). C.3 indicates that the contractor shall furnish and make available all necessary support services as well as requisite material, computer equipment, office equipment, data and facilities to accomplish the requirements in this SOW. H.9.(2) refers back to C.3 for key elements. C.3 does not specify key elements. Please specify material and facilities that must be provided by the contractor.
Response #4 – The FAA cannot specify material and facilities that must be provided by the contractor.  The contractor should consider the requirements in the SOW and its current assets in determining what materials, equipment, facilities, etc. are needed to accomplish the requirements under this contract. For example, the materials to be furnished by the contractor may include computer hardware/software resources, modeling tools, simulation tools, maintenance, and other tools of a similar nature, other than those provided by the FAA.   The facilities to be furnished by the contractor are the contractor facilities that will house its personnel that are not located on-site at FAA locations.
Section F

Question #1 – Part I, Clause F.5, Progress Reports, Schedule of Delivery, indicates a due date for the Progress Report of “ …the fifteenth (5th) day…..” should this read “the fifteenth (15th)? Please clarify.

Response #1 – This is a typographical error. Progress Reports are due to the COTR not later than the fifth (5th) day of the month. Clause F.5 is revised accordingly.

Section G
Question #1 – Part I, Clause G.11 (fifth line) refers to “…beyond FY98…”. Should this reference be FY2000?

Response #1 – Yes. Clause G.11 is revised accordingly.

Section H

Question #1 - Part I, Clause B.4 indicates “Electrical Engineer/Air Traffic Control Specialist” as one labor category. Part I, Clause C.3 states the Government desires one full time individual for every personnel labor category outlined in the SIR. However, Part I, Clauses H.8.j and H.8.k, respectively, and Part IV, Provision L.8.2.g specify that “Electrical Engineer” and “Air Traffic Control Specialist” are separate labor categories. Please clarify.

Response #1 – The “Electrical Engineer” and “Air Traffic Control Specialist” are separate labor categories. Clause B.4 is revised accordingly.

Question #2 – Part I, Clause H.8, Labor Category/Skills Level, defines the minimum qualifications for each of the labor categories. None of the labor categories indicate that an equivalent amount of experience will be accepted in lieu of education. Does the Government anticipate establishing some type of equivalency for the labor categories included in this SIR? There are a number of highly qualified individuals who would be able to provide excellent service under the labor categories and type of work included in this SIR who have extensive experience but who do not possess a college degree. 

Response #2 – Section H.8 has been modified to establish equivalencies for some categories; however due to the nature of the requirements it is necessary to maintain the higher level of qualifications in other categories. Please refer to revised Clause H.8 to see the established equivalency for specified labor categories.

Question #3 – For Part I, H.8, Labor Category/Skills Level, please clarify the questions below regarding the specific labor categories:

· For Program Manager (page 47), will the Program Manager be required to possess both a bachelor’s degree and a master’s degree in a relevant field? As written, the Program Manager must possess both a bachelor’s degree or higher in engineering, computer science, or related field…and a master’s degree in either business or engineering field. Please clarify.

· For Administrative Assistant I (page 50), will this position be required to possess both a bachelor’s degree or equivalent [not specified] and a high school diploma or equivalent [not specified]? Please clarify.

Response #3 – The basic qualification for the Program Manager has been revised to state:

Basic Qualifications: Successful completion of a study in an accredited college or university leading to the award of a bachelor’s degree in business, engineering, or related field and 10 years of experience in managing complex projects, or no degree with at least 15 years of experience managing complex projects. Knowledge of FAA aviation research operations desired.

The basic qualifications for the Administrative Assistant I have been revised to state:

Basic Qualifications: An associate degree or a high school diploma with 7 years of experience as an administrative assistant.

Please refer to revised Clause H.8.

Question #4 – Paragraph L.8.3.1 – The Written Proposal: a. F1 -  Personnel: 1(b) requires “The Offeror provide resumes for each labor category identified in Section H of the SIR, which includes the Key Personnel positions”. There are categories that have Staff Hours that seem to require several personnel, and several that require less than one man year. Does the FAA desire just one resume per labor category identified in Section H, or multiple resumes based on the hours allocated per category?

Response #4 – The FAA desires just one resume per labor category.

Question #5 – Request clarification. Do you require one resume per labor category or per individual within the labor category? For example, for systems analyst, do you want one resume or four resumes? (using 1880 staff hours per year as a baseline).

Response #5 – The FAA desires just one resume per labor category.

Question #6 – Can experience be substituted to satisfy education requirement? For example, can a Masters degree and 10 or more years experience be considered equivalent to a Doctorate?

Response #6 – Section H.8 has been modified to establish equivalencies for some categories, however due to the nature of the requirements it is necessary to maintain the 

higher level of qualifications in other categories. Please refer to revised Clause H.8 to see the established equivalency for specified labor categories.

Section I

Question #1 – Part II, Clause I.6, Mentor Protégé Program identifies the FAA Mentor Protégé Program but does not explicitly indicate either in this clause or in Section M if participation in the Mentor Protégé Program will be an item of evaluation for this SIR? Please clarify.

Response #1 – Participants in the Mentor Protégé Program will not result in credit and is not an item of evaluation. 
Question #2 – Does this contract provide any credit to the bidders in a Mentor-Protégé relationship?

Response #2 –  No. This contract will not provide any credit to the bidders in a Mentor-Protégé relationship.

Section J 

Question #1 – For Part III, Section J, Attachment J-2, Price Exhibits (A through F), please provide clarification for the following:

· In Exhibit C, is the subcontractor’s cost in the “Material” section supposed to reflect the total estimated or proposed cost for each subcontractor to include their labor plus all ODC’s?

· In Exhibit F attached to the SIR is entitled “Travel/Living Expenses” and does not address indirect expenses as indicated in Part IV, Section L.8.2.c (page 103). Is there a specific format to be used to provide the indirect expense information? Is the Exhibit F attached to the SIR in error?

Response #1

· Yes, the subcontractor’s cost in the “Material” section should reflect the proposed price of each subcontractor including labor, ODC’s (excluding travel), and fee.  

· Exhibit F – Travel/Living Expenses in Attachment J-2 is an error and will be removed from the SIR. As stated in Section L.8.2.c, Exhibit F – Indirect Expenses remains a requirement under Volume 2 – Cost Proposal. The offeror shall use their own format to submit the requested indirect expense information. 
Question #2 – In Section J Attachment J-1 The Business Declaration Form is listed and so attached. Where within the proposal would the FAA like this form inserted?

Response #2 –  Please provide the Business Declaration Form in Volume 1 – Offeror (Administrative Proposal) as a separate clearly labeled tab.

Question #3 – Cost Proposal Exhibit D(1) – Hourly Rate Buildup [Base year] contains columns for both on-site and off-site overhead rates, however, there is only one column provided to list the Proposed Hourly (fully burdened rate). Given that the fully burdened rate will be different for on-site personnel vs. that of off-site personnel, which should be used for purposes of filling in the Proposed Hourly (fully burdened rates) column? Should we be including separate rows to price a fully burdened rate for both the on-site and the off-site personnel?

Response #3 –  Please refer to revised Section L.8.2.g to see the FAA’s revised best projection of its final labor categories and there anticipated locations. For the purposes of filling in the Proposed Hourly (fully burdened rates) column, separate rows should be inserted as necessary to price fully burdened rates for either on-site or off-site personnel, or both (if applicable).  

Question #4 – Exhibit D(1) has both on-site and off-site listed. We are unsure how to complete the exhibit as the SIR does not specify any labor categories or hours for assignment at FAA facilities. Please clarify.

Response #4 – Section L.8.2.g has been revised to identify labor categories that will be housed on-site at FAA facilities. The Offeror should refer to Section L.8.2.g when completing Exhibit D(1).   
Section L

Question #1 – Does the Statement that this procurement “…will remain a 100% Competitive Set-Aside among Small Business Owned and Controlled by SEDBs…” mean that larger businesses CANNOT be subcontractors to SEDBs and are totally precluded from participating? Please clarify.

Response #1 – Large businesses may participate as subcontractors. Only SEDBs may participate as prime contractors under this procurement. For subcontract purposes, the total value and effort proposed must not exceed 49% of the total proposed efforts.

Question #2 – Part Section B.4 and Part I, Section H.8, specify Administrative Assistant I and Administrative Assistant II. Part IV, Section L.8.2.g specifies only the single labor category Administrative Assistant. Please clarify.

Response #2 – Part IV, Section L.8.2.g is revised to specify Administrative Assistant I and Administrative II. These categories are separate labor categories.

Question #3 – Part IV, Section L.8.3.1.b(2), F2 – Past Performance (page 108), refers to a Past Performance Survey Questionnaire as Attachment 1 to the SIR that is supposed to be completed only by a government or organizational official and forwarded directly to 

the Contract Specialist. A copy of this questionnaire does not seem to be included in the SIR. Where can we obtain a copy of this questionnaire?

Response #3 – A copy of the Past Performance Survey Questionnaire was released under Amendment 01 to the SIR.

Question #4 – Section L.10 “Small Business Size Standard states: The small business size standard for Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) code 8711 is $20 million dollars and $5 million dollars for SIC code 8742. Is the SIC code for this procurement 8711 or 8742?

Response #4 – This requirement actually has two SIC codes, both 8711 and 8742.  

Question #5 – How many people are required, and at what locations? There are 19 positions listed, according to the chart in Section L.8.2, some positions require more than one FTE. Also, some of the bodies listed are often not separate people on staff. For example, “writer/editor”, particularly for small firms, is not a distinct person; many of our technical people are excellent writers and write their own material and edit our reports before they are submitted to the customer. Similarly, our “graphic specialists” are our technical people, some of whom have excellent skills in this area.

Response #5 – Please refer to revised Section L.8.2.g to see the FAA’s revised best projection of its final labor categories and there anticipated locations. The estimated hours at Section L.8.2 represent the FAA’s best projection of its labor requirements. The FAA Office of Aviation Research has organizations outside of the Washington D.C. area that may place orders under the resulting contract. Those requirements will be specified in a task order for those particular locations. 

The FAA desires at least one individual per labor category. For those labor categories with hours that represent more than one labor year, the FAA desires more than one 

individual. For those labor categories that represent less than one labor year, FAA desires one individual to perform the total number of hours stated for that labor category.

Question #6 – What is one labor year equal to? Some of the positions in L.8.2 call for 1880 hours, some call for 2000; we also see estimated required hours of 800, 900, 1000, and 2500 hours. Is 2000 hours more than one person?
Response #6 –  The estimated labor hours at Section L.8.2.g represent FAA’s best projection of its labor requirements. One labor year equates to 1,880 hours.

The FAA desires at least one individual per labor category. For those labor categories with hours that represent more than one labor year, the FAA desires more than one individual. For those labor categories that represent less than one labor year, FAA desires one individual to perform the total number of hours stated for that labor category. 2000 hours represent more than one person.

Question #7 – Under Past Performance (L.8.3.1), “The government requires examples of contracts of multi-million dollar value that have been active within the last 5 years, and contain a period of performance of at least 2 years…” Does this mean we have to have COMPLETED 2 years? This is unfair to 8(a) contractors. For example, our company has had our 8(a) status for only 20 months, so we would not be able to have completed 2 years of a similar contract. We have completed about 18 months of a multi-year, multi-million dollar contract which would otherwise be a great contract to use for this requirement. Can we count this?

Response #7 – For past performance, the example provided by an Offeror to demonstrate their past performance of similar requirement may be contracts in progress with a multi-million dollar value and a 2 year performance period. The example provided in the question is acceptable for evaluation.

Question #8 – The requirement for complete resumes, letters of commitment, and letters of offer are an undue burden on a small business at this stage of the bidding process. 

Normally on a Small Business set-aside, only key resumes need to be supplied with the proposal. The SIR, section L.8.3.1a1(b), calls for resumes for each labor category. Will this be changed to key resumes only? If so, which ones?

Response #8 – The FAA requirement for complete resumes, letters of commitment and letters of offer remains unchanged. Follow the instructions in Section L.8.3.1.

Question #9 – Section B.2a, the phase “unilaterally reallocate the labor effort”, could wreak havoc with people, depending on the frequency of use. Please clarify.

Response #9 – The requirement for unilateral reallocation of labor effort has been removed. Please see revised Section B.2a. 

Question #10 – In Section L.8 Proposal information, the FAA requests Offerors to use companies names on the Table of Contents pages only and “All other pages shall not contain any information that identifies the offeror…”. Within Volume 1 the Representations and Certifications, and the Business Declaration Form, and the SEDB Status pages all clearly ask for company information. Please advise on how the FAA would like Offerors to handle Volume 1. Can the Offeror use company names in the Oral Briefing slides?

Response #10 –  Offerors should include company information on the Representations and Certifications, Business Declaration, and the SEDB certification letter. The Business Declaration and SEDB certification letter should be included in Volume 1 (Administrative Proposal) as separate clearly labeled tabs and the Representations and Certification information should be submitted as part of Section K of the model contract. Yes, the Offeror can use company names in the oral briefing slides. Section L.8.3.2 will be revised accordingly to allow the Offerors to include company name, address, or logo throughout the proposal as deemed necessary by the Offeror.

Question #11 – Section L.8.2, Cost Proposal, Part I Mandatory Exhibits, Exhibit B. Will the FAA be providing a materials listing for pricing by the Offerors, or maybe establish a fixed estimate such as with the Travel/Per Diem?

Response #11 – No. The FAA will not provide a material listing for pricing nor establish a fixed estimate as such with the Travel/Per Diem.

Question #12 – In Section L, Paragraph G, the FAA provides the Staff Hours per year for the Cost Evaluation. The sum of the hours is equal to 38, 140. Would the FAA like the Offeror to use the 38,140 or is there additional hours that are missing from the labor categories?

Response #12 – Section L.8.2g previously omitted the labor category and associated hours for the Administrative Assistant. The estimated labor hour mix has been revised to reflect the total estimated hours of 40,650. Please refer to Section L.8.2.g to see the FAA’s revised best projection of its labor categories, hours, and locations. 

Question #13 – L.8.b. (6). Where is this cross-index to be placed? In all volumes? If it is required to be placed in Volume 3, is it excluded from the 10-page limit?

Response #13 – The cross-index should be placed in Volume 3 – Technical Offer and Capability Information and it is included in the page limit. The 10-page limit has been changed to 15 pages. See revised Section L.8.3.1.d.

Question #14 - L.8.b. (4). In Volume 3, is the Table of Contents excluded from the 10-page limit?

Response #14 – Yes, The Table of Contents is excluded from the page limit in Volume 3 – Technical Offer and Capability Information. The 10-page limit has been changed to 15 pages. See revised Section L.8.3.

Question #15 – L.10. There are two SIC codes in this SIR: 8711 and 8742. Does this imply the possibility of two separate awards? Please advise what SOW requirements fall under the SIC code 8711 vs. 8742.

Response #15 – The use of two SIC codes does not imply the possibility of two separate awards. It is FAA’s intent to make one award.

Question #16 – This section states that the subcontractor can submit a separate proposal in a sealed envelope separate from the prime. Can the subcontractor include their mandatory exhibits as part of the prime’s submittal?

Response #16 – Yes, the subcontractor may include their mandatory exhibits as part of the prime contractor’s submittal.

Question #17 – L.8.3.1 & L.8.3.2. There is no reference in the written proposal to the offeror’s management approach to the SOW, yet there is a requirement in the oral presentation. Please verify that the offeror’s management approach to the SOW is only required in the oral presentation.

Response #17 – The Offeror’s management approach to the SOW is only required in the oral presentation.

Question #18 - Of the 40,020 staff hours per year, how many should be considered on-site and how many should be considered off-site for the purposes of determining a bottom line price for each year? Is the proposed mix of hours determined individually by the proposer? If we propose 40,020 hours for both off-site and on-site personnel, as requested in the last sentence of Section L.8.2.g (Pg 105) that would total 80,040 hours for each year, which is a disconnect with the level of effort stated in Section B.5 which calls for 40,020 hours per year.
Response #18 –  Please refer to revised Section L.8.2.g which provides the government’s best projection of its labor requirements for both onsite and offsite locations.

Question #19 – We plan to have two subcontractors on our team. The requirement in the SIR requires three or more contracts be submitted. Can the three or more contracts requirement be satisfied by at least one contract from the prime and at least one contract per subcontractor?

Response #19 –  No. The 3 contracts demonstrating the Offeror’s Past Performance experience must be contracts performed by the prime contractor.  The prime contractor may satisfy this requirement by using previous experience as a prime contractor, subcontractor, or a combination of the two.
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